
Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where
individuals, communities and businesses flourish

Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 9 February 2017

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL

Membership:

Councillors Oliver Gerrish (Chair), Russell Cherry (Vice-Chair), Gary Collins, 
Roy Jones, Terry Piccolo and Michael Stone

Substitutes:

Councillors John Allen, Garry Hague, Ben Maney, David Potter and Gerard Rice

Agenda

Open to Public and Press

Page
1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Minutes 5 - 14

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Cleaner, Greener 
and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 6 
December 2016.

3.  Items of Urgent Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B 
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4.  Declaration of Interests 

5.  Update on community safety partnership hubs 15 - 18

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:



Please contact Charlotte Raper, Senior Democratic Services Officer by sending an 
email to Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: 1 February 2017



Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and 
have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days 
before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
to be recorded.
Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for 
publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any 
concerns.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at 
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because 
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local 
communities.
If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special 
requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the 
Communications Team at CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk before the 
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought 
to any specific request made.
Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar 
devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices 
must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or 
committee.
The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has 
been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not 
disrupt proceedings.
The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording 
and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting 
proceedings at the meeting.

Page 1

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
mailto:CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk


Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device 
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

 You should connect to TBC-CIVIC

 Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.

 A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before 
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to 
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest 
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device

You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry 
Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged, 
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this 
meeting, Councillors should:

 Access the modern.gov app
 Enter your username and password

Page 2

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB


DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

 Is your register of interests up to date? 
 In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests? 
 Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly? 

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

 What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet, 
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or 

 If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is 
before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting 
 relate to; or 
 likely to affect 

any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests? 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

 your spouse or civil partner’s
 a person you are living with as husband/ wife
 a person you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of 
the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so  
significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant 
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest.

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a 
pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer 
of the interest for inclusion in the register 

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous 
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:
- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of 

the matter at a meeting; 
- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the 

meeting; and
- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted 

upon
If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for 
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further 
steps

If the interest is not already in the register you must 
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring 

Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature 
of the interest to the meeting

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough 
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

Non- pecuniaryPecuniary

You may participate and vote in the usual 
way but you should seek advice on 
Predetermination and Bias from the 

Monitoring Officer.

Page 3



Vision: Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where individuals, 
communities and businesses flourish.

To achieve our vision, we have identified five strategic priorities:

1. Create a great place for learning and opportunity

 Ensure that every place of learning is rated “Good” or better

 Raise levels of aspiration and attainment so that residents can take advantage of 
local job opportunities

 Support families to give children the best possible start in life

2. Encourage and promote job creation and economic prosperity

 Promote Thurrock and encourage inward investment to enable and sustain growth

 Support business and develop the local skilled workforce they require

 Work with partners to secure improved infrastructure and built environment

3. Build pride, responsibility and respect 

 Create welcoming, safe, and resilient communities which value fairness

 Work in partnership with communities to help them take responsibility for shaping 
their quality of life 

 Empower residents through choice and independence to improve their health and 
well-being

4. Improve health and well-being

 Ensure people stay healthy longer, adding years to life and life to years 

 Reduce inequalities in health and well-being and safeguard the most vulnerable 
people with timely intervention and care accessed closer to home

 Enhance quality of life through improved housing, employment and opportunity

5. Promote and protect our clean and green environment 

 Enhance access to Thurrock's river frontage, cultural assets and leisure 
opportunities

 Promote Thurrock's natural environment and biodiversity 

 Inspire high quality design and standards in our buildings and public space

Page 4



Minutes of the Meeting of the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 6 December 2016 at 7.00 pm

Present: Councillors Oliver Gerrish (Chair), Russell Cherry (Vice-Chair), 
Gary Collins, Roy Jones, Terry Piccolo and Michael Stone

In attendance: Steve Cox, Corporate Director of Environment and Place
Julie Rogers, Head of Environment
Sue Harper, Interim Head of Environment
Paul Adams, Principal Licensing Officer
Grant Greatrex, Sport and Leisure Policy Development Manager
Luke Love, Strategy, Projects & Operations Manager
Jim Nicolson, Community Protection Manager
Daren Spring, Environmental Frontline Services Manager
Beau Stanford-Francis, Contacts & Business Development 
Manager
Carl Tomlinson, Finance Manager
Charlotte Raper, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Emma Harrington, Development Manager, Thames21
Clive Webster, Warden, River Thames Society

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting may be 
filmed and was being recorded, with the audio recording to be made available on 
the Council’s website.

18. Minutes 

The minutes of the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 11 October 2016 were approved as a correct 
record.

19. Items of Urgent Business 

The Chair thanked the Interim Head of Environment for her service over the 
past few months and wished her well for the future as this was to be her last 
meeting of the Committee.  He welcomed the Head of Environment to the role 
and expressed the hope that the Committee would see lots of her moving 
forward.

Members were reminded that in March 2016 the Committee had proposed a 
Members’ Working Group be set up to monitor the work undertaken regarding 
the PREVENT agenda.  It had been recommended that the group should 
consist of a minimum of one Member per Political Group and at present this 
had not been met.  Members were encouraged to contact Democratic 
Services outside of the meeting if they felt they could take part.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



20. Declaration of Interests 

There were no declarations of interests.

21. Clive Webster and Thames 21 Presentation 

The Warden from the River Thames Society and the Thames21 Development 
Manager gave their presentation to the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee regarding the efforts of partner organisations and 
volunteers within Thurrock.  The Committee heard what had taken place over 
the past year and what the aims should be for the year ahead.

The Committee thanked both Clive Webster and Emma Harrington for their 
presentation, and for the work they have done in Thurrock.  The Chair asked 
what the Council could do to be of most help and how residents could get 
involved.  It was suggested that the Council could employ staff to monitor 
littering activity on the ground and a network of intelligence could be 
developed.  Local residents could get involved through a number of 
organisations but Grays Phoenix were especially keen.  Thames21 were 
happy to invest time training local residents but there needed to be a longer 
term plan; the reality was it was hoped more could be done.

Councillor Jones was keen to learn what response had been received from 
their work with schools.  Members were advised that sessions were run on the 
water cycle as well as the flow of litter, and as children always seemed 
fascinated it was hoped they might go home and influence their families.  The 
reality was however that children could only do so much and older 
generations needed to be involved as well.

Councillor Collins referred to comments around water sampling and queried 
who was responsible for analysing samples and what the water quality in 
Thurrock was.  The Committee was informed that Thames21 trained Citizen 
Scientists to test water samples for temperature, turbidity, phosphorus and 
other chemicals.  These trained volunteers were given testing kits and it was 
their responsibility to take readings and upload the data.  The Committee 
heard that the Thames Tideway Tunnel would make a big difference but the 
contributory rivers were influential.  The situation was improving and there 
seemed to be increased awareness but there was still far more to be done.

Councillor Piccolo suggested that sometimes local residents could be the best 
at monitoring their local area so perhaps the Council could introduce a hotline 
or some option on the website to report issues, but the Committee heard that 
certain areas with build-up were unseen by the public as they were along 
tidelines.  It was suggested that the Environmental Enforcement teams might 
be utilised to monitor areas with high levels of food waste. The Thames 21 
Development Manager sought clarity regarding the Environmental 
Enforcement team and whether they were responsible solely for penalty 
notices or whether they would be responsible for clearing the litter too.  
Enforcement Officers were responsible for issuing Fixed-Penalty Notices and 
the clearing of rubbish fell to the street cleaning teams.

Page 6



The Vice-Chair informed the Committee that he had taken part in one of the 
litter pick days and had found the experience very rewarding.  As he had 
previously been an unpaid work supervisor for the probation service he 
wondered whether it had ever been considered to work with probation groups.  
The Committee heard that it had been an idea once but never happened, 
however there was also the issue of how to enthuse local residents to get 
involved; if there were probation groups there it may seem punitive. The Vice-
Chair reiterated how rewarding he had found the experience and that it might 
also be beneficial for those on probation to be working alongside “decent 
people”, for want of a better expression.

The Chair asked, in terms of hopes to change behaviour, whether there were 
any particular schemes to link into the work of the Council.  It was advised 
that fixed campaigns would be the best way.  The Corporate Director for 
Environment and Place agreed that the Council should synchronise with 
organisations such as the River Thames Society and Thames 21, the recent 
“Bin it” campaign had been a success so there was no reason it should not be 
broadened to cover the riverfronts and shorelines.

The Committee heard that there was an issue of where to prioritise when 
arranging picks, as it was important not to spread resources too far.  As there 
was a roughly 50:50 split between tidal deposits and domestic litter the 
Council would have to focus on littering within Thurrock, as very little could be 
done to influence the deposits from contributory rivers to the Thames.

22. Grays Beach Report 

The Strategy, Projects and Operations Manager presented the report which 
had been requested by Members following the flooding at Grays Beach over 
the summer months.

The Chair acknowledged that it was reassuring that action had been taken by 
Anglian Water, but asked whether Members should be confident that a 
recurrence at that site was unlikely, and whether there were any other sites 
which could be at risk that should be monitored.  Members were assured that 
a recurrence would be very unlikely and there were now secondary and 
tertiary fail safes in place.

Councillor Jones recalled that aside from the technical breakdowns, part of 
the issue had been the build-up of fly-tipping.  He asked whether there were 
measures in place to prevent similar build ups in future to cause the same 
problems.  The Committee was advised that the site was solely the 
responsibility of Anglian Water, but the Council would actively monitor the 
situation in future.

Councillor Stone referred to section 3.4.1 of the report and asked for clarity as 
to the purpose of the tidal flap.  The purpose of the flap was predominately to 
prevent tidal water entering the facility and coming into Grays Beach.  It had 
been faulty but had since been replaced and additional fail safes added, 
which meant there were now three tidal flap valves in place.

Page 7



Councillor Collins enquired what lessons had been learnt, and whether 
systems were now in place to ensure a faster response in future.  The Council 
now had direct links with colleagues at Anglian Water to liaise with in future in 
the event of problems arising.

Councillor Piccolo noted the delay in obtaining the Marine Management 
Organisation (MMO) license and asked whether the Council had looked to the 
Port of London Authority to speed up the process?  The Corporate Director for 
Environment and Place advised Members that the Council had been under 
the impression that Anglian Water should obtain the MMO; the lesson had 
been learnt that the Council should contact the Port of London directly in 
future as the process was far smoother.  He also added that one failing 
Anglian Water would accept is that there had been no proper inspection / 
maintenance regime, or the issue would have been spotted sooner.  This had 
been rectified and a regime was now in place.

RESOLVED:

The Committee noted the report.

23. Active Place Strategy Update 

The Sports & Leisure Policy & Development Manager introduced the report which 
gave Members an update of the work undertaken so far and the key findings.  
The Committee heard that further updates would be brought back as the Strategy 
evolved.

The Chair referred to the open space assessment in terms of the progress of the 
Local Plan and highlighted that residents were, quite rightly, protective of the 
open spaces within the borough.  He hoped there would be some commentary on 
how open spaces might be protected with the Local Plan and future development 
plans.  The Committee was advised that a key issue within the Local Plan was 
maintaining open spaces, both in terms of green belt and the urban environment.

Councillor Piccolo noted that there was no mention in the report of facilities for 
off-road bikes, scrambles and the like.  This had become a major issue within 
Thurrock, with two serious accidents and a fatality within the past six months and 
he felt there should be a suitable place for a bike track identified and put forward 
within the Local Plan, even as a commercial venture.  The idea would be taken 
on board and the Planning Department were already looking at finding a suitable 
task.  There were issues however as it was considered that many of these 
individuals who were currently riding these bikes across fields did not have 
suitable bikes, the appropriate safety equipment or access to trailers to access a 
commercial site.  

The Vice-Chair hoped more footpaths which had become overgrown would be 
opened up and perhaps the new development at Stanford-le-Hope would allow 
for these paths to join up to the Country Park.  Similarly motorbikes should be 
kept off these paths to ensure safety.  The Vice-Chair also highlighted that boxing 
was not mentioned within the report.  There was a very successful boxing club in 

Page 8



Chadwell-St-Mary which was struggling to stay open and he asked whether the 
Council might support it.  The Committee heard that Thurrock Sports Council ran 
sessions regarding fundraising and there was also the Amateur Boys’ Boxing 
Association, the Sports & Leisure Policy & Development Manager would happily 
put the boxing club in contact with the necessary organisations.

Councillor Collins noted his surprise that the twenty-five year lease was coming 
to an end for Thurrock Harriers and asked whether there were likely to be any 
problems regarding renewal.  Members heard that the Council was working 
closely with the Harriers to ensure a lease which suited both parties.  The bigger 
issue would be the plan for the Blackshots site as a whole moving forward; but 
the Council had every intention of supporting athletics moving forward.

Councillor Jones asked what more could be done to encourage communities to 
transfer assets to charities, and what measures were in place with regards to the 
future of swimming pools within Thurrock.  There was a long and proud tradition 
of clubs being run by volunteers within Thurrock, but with any volunteer 
opportunity these volunteers would need support and it was essential to ensure 
the transition from Local Authority management was as smooth as possible.  
There was also a need to ensure that if assets were transferred it would not be in 
favour of one sport to the exclusion of another.  The matter of swimming pools 
within the borough was a far bigger issue; Blackshots pool was fifty years old, 
and Belhus and Corringham were forty years old.  Looking to the future, they 
would no longer be the type of facilities which encouraged increased participation 
for families and residents.  Swimming pools were a big investment, a 25m, six-
lane pool, sports hall and fitness facility would cost in the region of £15,000,000 
to build.

Councillor Stone expressed his alarm that Thurrock was in need of swimming 
pool provisions and could be left with none in the borough.  Members were 
advised that the plan ran until 2035, and there was therefore a need to be looking 
to the long-term future, to promote and develop facilities.  The Active Place 
Strategy was a real opportunity for step change, whilst the Local Plan was one 
route for development items would be brought back to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, particularly around the issue of swimming pools in the borough.

The Chair agreed that high aspirations for the borough in the future were 
important and would welcome reports moving forward.

RESOLVED:

The Committee noted progress on the Active Place Strategy.

24. Responding To Unauthorised Traveller Encampments (U/Es) in Thurrock 

The Community Protection Manager presented the report outlining Thurrock’s 
current response to unauthorised traveller encampments and ways to reduce the 
number thereof.

Page 9



The Chair welcomed all measures outlined within the report.  The Vice-Chair 
noted that there was no mention of monitoring groups once they had moved onto 
a site, despite the fact that sites were being filled with rubbish on a daily basis.  It 
appeared nothing was done and then groups moved on with rubbish left for the 
Council to clear.  It was necessary to ensure iconic sites were properly target 
hardened as groups tended to move on from one site to another in Thurrock.

The Committee was advised that if there were an injunction in place on a site 
there could be punitive penalties for individuals or groups who set up 
encampments there.  The issue of fly-tipping the fact remained that the Council’s 
service was not 24hour and it was difficult at times to know how best to respond.  
The reality was the speed at which encampments were dispersed was crucial.  
The Community Protection Manager added that there were sites which were left 
in a reasonable condition and that should be noted.  Successful prosecutions 
were also difficult unless someone was caught in the act of fly-tipping.  There was 
now a more robust approach to the use of Section 61 powers and the Deputy 
Police and Crime Commissioner was chairing a task and finish group to address 
the issue directly.

The Vice-Chair referred to the sums of money spent to identify those responsible 
for fly-tipping at 3am on country lanes and questioned why nothing could be done 
when the responsible parties were camped on the site where the fly-tipping had 
taken place.  Those responsible had to be held accountable and should not get 
away with such behaviour.  He suggested employing security companies to 
observe the site to catch them dumping waste.

Councillor Piccolo sought clarity as to whether the use of a Public Space 
Protection Order (PSPO) would weaken Section 61 powers.  Members were 
assured that a PSPO allowed for Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) but would not 
compromise the use of Section 61.

Councillor Piccolo referred to proposals to collect court costs and asked whether, 
since the date of a court appearance would be known, it would be possible to 
include an estimate of the clean-up costs too.  He also asked whether, if it could 
not be proven that an individual on an unauthorised encampment was 
responsible for fly-tipping, they could be challenged regarding a waste-transfer 
notice, as failure to comply allowed for penalties and seizure of vehicles.

The court cost recovery allowed no dispute about the figure as costs were set 
and it was necessary to minimise the ability of parties to haggle.  The proposal 
was less about recovering the costs, as the money would not go to Thurrock 
Council, and more about making Thurrock unattractive to travellers looking to set 
up unauthorised encampments.

Councillor Jones expressed his opinion that Thurrock had been viewed as a soft 
touch for too long and he was glad to see this was changing.  He recalled an 
unauthorised encampment at Belhus Park / Lakeside where there was blatant 
damage upon entry to the site, and those responsible had threatened people then 
they moved on and continued to do the same.  He expressed disgust at how the 
borough had been treated, especially with human and animal waste left at the 

Page 10



Springhouse Road site.  It was good that Section 61 powers were being used 
more effectively as six or seven days at a site was too long.  It was crucial to 
deliver the message that Thurrock was no longer a soft touch and he expressed 
appreciation for the efforts made thus far.

The Committee heard that the site at Lakeside had been private land which made 
it difficult for the Council as they had to work with the landowners, though land 
owners had far greater powers than Local Authorities.  Local Authority timescales 
were not negotiable; they were set out in legislation.  It was also advised that 
human waste would justify the use of Section 61 and there was now far more 
clarity surrounding the matter.

Councillor Collins suggested entering registration numbers into the DVLA / police 
database to see whether vehicles at unauthorised encampments were taxed 
and/or insured which may make them less likely to continue.  He noted that this 
was a county wide issue and there had been talk of fixed sites and wondered 
whether anything was being done about this.  The Committee heard that the 
Police had been urged to use their database and more was being done.  In terms 
of the fixed transit sites however encampments being moved on in Thurrock 
could only be referred to a site within the Borough.

RESOLVED:

1) That work in hand to seek a number of legal deterrents to those 
travellers who are responsible for multiple U/Es is expedited. 

2) That scope for further cost-effective, proportionate target-
hardening, subject to funding, is undertaken.

3) That the contents of this report be noted.

Councillor Stone left the meeting at 8.26pm.

25. Environmental Enforcement Report 

The Interim Head of Environment presented the report which gave Members an 
update on progress since the issue was last brought before Cleaner, Greener 
and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The chair welcomed the fact that the recommendations at the last meeting were 
being taken forward to Cabinet.  He added that he would still like to see a review 
as to whether the service could be run in house but welcomed the 12 month pilot.  
Councillor Collins echoed this sentiment.

Councillor Piccolo noted that fines would not be issued to under 18s and asked 
whether that was a legality issue or a Council made decision, as the college in 
the town centre might prove an issue in terms of litter.  He also referred to section 
3.2.4 of the report and the fact that reference to “Grays High Street” should read 
“Grays Town Centre”.  He asked for clarity on the 14 day appeal timescale and it 
was confirmed that anyone who appealed within 14 days would receive extra 

Page 11



time to pay the penalty.  He asked whether it would be possible for young 
children to be rewarded by enforcement officers for putting rubbish in the bin, not 
only to encourage children but also to add a positive side to enforcement officers, 
not only FPNs.

The Committee heard that working with young people was very important and it 
could be possible for such a system to be put in place.  The decision not to fine 
under 18s was not a legal requirement but a Council decision, though it was 
possible to be reworked in future.  It was agreed the report should refer to the 
town centre as a whole, not just the high street.

The Vice-Chair agreed the decision not to issue FPNs to under 18s did seem to 
let 17 year olds “off the hook”.  He also asked how plans for education would 
work.  Members were advised that the “Bin it” campaign had been successful and 
it would be similar moving forward.  It would be a question of communication, 
highlighting the work being done and letting people know that they could be 
penalised.

The Chair agreed that the Committee’s comments regarding ages had been to 
defend toddlers rather than sixth formers and he was happy to include comments 
that perhaps 15-17 year olds should be considered.

Councillor Piccolo suggested a trial period whereby the younger groups could be 
approached and advised that they could be penalised for such behaviour, to 
make them aware that the Council was conscious of their behaviour and it wasn’t 
acceptable.

The Chair summarised that there were a range of views so the Committee would 
advise Cabinet to review alternative options in terms of the ages covered by the 
policy.

RESOLVED:

The Committee noted the report and commented, particularly around the 
fining of under 18s.

26. Council Spending Review Update 

The Finance Manager presented the report which gave the Committee an 
update on the proposals being considered which would affect the environment 
budget. The Chair addressed the individual proposals which were relevant to 
the Committee at section 4.2 of the report for clarification:

Trade Waste Year on Year Growth would bring more revenue. Trading 
grounds maintenance services would bring more revenue. Waste disposal 
contract negotiations were to obtain the same services at a cheaper rate and 
not about cutting services.

The Chair then asked, as there was a remaining gap of £1.3million, whether 
the Committee should expect any further proposals.  Members were assured 

Page 12



they should not expect any further proposals at this point in time in respect of 
2017/18; but discussions would continue to identify ways to manage 
potentially through one-off savings.  Budget planning would be an ongoing 
process and there would be further savings in respect of future years but none 
were coming forward at this point.  The Chair expressed that the news was 
encouraging in terms of the Committee’s ability to assess the current 
proposals.

Councillor Jones asked how the Council compared, in terms of price, with its 
competitors regarding trade waste offers.    Members were advised that the 
Council’s rates were very competitive, that smaller businesses need not pay 
V.A.T. and the Council had the ability to offer longer contracts that many 
commercial companies.  It was important that the Council remained 
commercially minded moving forward.

Councillor Jones asked whether there was a timeframe for Business Rate 
Appeals.  The Committee heard that this information was not available to 
hand, but officers would send a response outside of the meeting.

RESOLVED:

1) That Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note the revised MTFS position and the Council 
Spending Review approach and timetable.

2) The Committee commented on the proposals currently being 
considered within the remit of this committee as generally 
favourable.

27. Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2017/18 

The Finance Manager introduced the report which outlined the charges which fell 
within the remit of Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and would take effect from 1 April 2017.

The Chair sought clarity regarding increased charges surrounding Hackney 
Carriage Licences, listed on pages 149 and 150 of the Agenda, and the 
Committee heard that after the original Council Fees and Charges list had been 
published the Council moved from an annual licence fee to a five-yearly fee in 
those areas.  There had previously been no five-yearly fee and it was agreed that 
the table should be amended to give an explanation.  

The Chair referred to section 12.7 of the report and noted the 60% increase in 
performance charge at Thameside Theatre and asked what it was likely the 
impact would be, and whether other options had been explored or whether a 
phased implantation would be feasible.  Members were advised this increase 
attempted to reflect the actual cost to the theatre and came after comparison with 
other theatres to bring the Council’s rate in line with its competitors.   The change 
would give an increase but not a huge proportion.  The Chair expressed his wish 
that Cabinet think carefully on the matter and if other options were available that 

Page 13



would be favourable to ensure the Council did not “shoot itself in the foot” over 
what might not be a significant proportion of revenue.

Councillor Collins asked what criteria the charges were based upon.  The 
Committee heard that some areas fell under statutory set figures, prescribed by 
legislation.  Where the Council had discretion it followed a cost recovery model 
and case law which generally stated that Councils could not charge more than it 
cost to administer schemes for licenses.  Alcohol and Entertainment licensing 
charges were set within legislation and the Council did not currently recover its 
costs for providing the service.  It was hoped the Government would change this 
in the future giving Local Authorities greater discretion for cost-recovery.  

Councillor Piccolo referred to section 12.4 of the report and stated he was 
pleased to see that only the middle tariff had been removed and that he 
appreciated the distinction between commercial and non-commercial operations 
had been maintained.

RESOLVED:

1) That Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note the revised fees and charges proposals including 
those no longer applicable.

2) That Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee comment on the proposals currently being considered 
within the remit of this committee.

28. Work Programme 

The Chair advised that a report on Libraries would be added to the Work 
Programme and asked if Members were satisfied.  Members agreed the 
proposed amendment.

The meeting finished at 8.59 pm

Approved as a true and correct record

CHAIR

DATE

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact
Democratic Services at Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Page 14

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk


9 February 2017 ITEM: 5

Cleaner, Greener, Safer overview and scrutiny committee

Update on community safety partnership hubs 

Wards and communities affected: 
All 

Key Decision: 
Not applicable 

Report of: Michelle Cunningham

Accountable Head of Service: Julie Rogers

Accountable Director: Steve Cox

This report is public

Executive Summary

Essex Police with the Local Authorities in Essex and partners have piloted 4 
Community Safety Hubs (CSH) in Tendring, Braintree, Uttlesford and Thurrock. The 
post implementation review found that CSH have been successful in promoting 
stronger working relationships between Police and partners and that information 
sharing and communication has improved.

The O & S committee requested that an update report be brought back to them on 
progress of the pilot. 

The strategic vision of Essex Police is now to establish co-located working of CSH to 
maximise the benefits of collaborative working with partners to deliver Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP) priorities through:

 building upon existing community partnerships and good practice
 developing better information sharing, closer working practices, and 

collaborative working between partners
 providing an integrated and effective delivery of the objectives of the local 

CSP plan in line with locally identified needs 

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 That the committee support the concept of a co-located community 
safety partnership hub

1.2 That the committee work with Essex Police command team to agree a 
mutually suitable agreement 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Thurrock Community Safety Partnership has been in discussions with Essex 
Police (EP) for the past year to identify how we can progress a Community 
Safety Hub (CSH) in Thurrock.

CSH are a means of bringing together partners to address the issues facing 
the District and improve outcomes for residents, businesses and visitors. 
The diverse challenges facing partners in Thurrock include gang related 
violence, domestic and sexual abuse and exploitation, child sexual 
exploitation, modern day slavery and human trafficking, hate crime and anti –
social behaviour as well as the more traditional acquisitive crime i.e. burglary 
and vehicle crime

2.2 Currently the CSH is based  in Grays Police Station. EP hub staff include: 
Licensing officer, Essex Watch officer, ASB officer, 2 Children and Young 
People Officers, Crime Prevention Tactical Advisor, Hate Crime Officer and 
Missing Persons Liaison Officer.

2.3 The Community Policing Team (CPT) currently work out of South Ockendon 
Police Station. This venue is also accessed by Thurrock Council ASB team for 
meetings and operations. The CPT consists of: 1 Inspector, 2 sergeants, 9 
constables, 10 PCSO, 5 special constables (all voluntarily on CPT), and 11 
Volunteer Police Cadets.

2.4 CPT work to Thurrock Community Safety Partnership (CSP) plan. Objectives 
are similar to those of EP plan and are agreed between the CSP manager 
and the district commander. 3 priorities are agreed quarterly. The priorities for 
Quarter 4 2017 are: Child Sexual Exploitation; Modern Day Slavery and Hate 
Crime. 

2.5 Thurrock Council Troubled Families, Thurrock Council ASB team, CSP 
manager, Lakeside security, Essex County Fire & Rescue Service, Port of 
Tilbury Police, and Integrated Offender Management team all currently attend 
tasking meetings fortnightly in the CSH. 

Thurrock CSP also has regular multi agency meetings to address Gang 
related violence, PREVENT matters, and Hate Crime, as well as Locality 
Action Group meetings to discuss high harm ASB and hate crime matters.  

2.6 A joint Communication plan is in place between Essex Police and Thurrock 
Council and agreed by the CSP. Information Sharing Agreements are in place 
however they do require refreshing.  

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1 Strong partnership working between partners and Essex Police is in place, the 
main issue is that of accommodation. At this time, partners are located in their 
own buildings (notably Thurrock Council Civic Offices and old Corringham 

Page 16



housing office (youth offending service)) and Police have the Hub at Grays 
Police station and CPT based at Ockendon police station. 

3.2 Next step is to revisit the option of co-located accommodation at Thurrock 
Council Civic Offices with the proposal cost being negotiated. It is proposed 
that Essex Police have access to 8 hot desks workstations.  

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 It is requested that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorse continued 
partnership working and a drive for a co-located Community Safety Hub in 
order to provide improved cohesive and coordinated services for the residents 
of Thurrock 

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1 Not applicable 

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 
impact

6.1 This way of working supports delivery of the Councils priority: Build pride, 
responsibility and respect.

6.2 Closer partnership working will lead to increased information sharing and 
therefore improve response to community concerns. 

7. Implications

7.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Laura Last
Management Accountant, Corporate Finance

There are no direct budget implications at this stage as negotiations are 
ongoing between Thurrock Council and Essex Police regarding where a co-
located Community Safety Hub should be situated

7.2 Legal

Implications verified by: Martin Hall 
Solicitor / Housing Team Leader

There are no legal implications arising from the report. 

7.3 Diversity and Equality

Page 17



Implications verified by: Natalie Warren
Community Development and Equalities 
Manager

There are no negative implications on diversity and equality. With a focus on 
priority of hate crime closer working can only support improved equality for the 
residents of Thurrock  

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder)

Improved working on the community safety priorities will have a positive 
bearing on Thurrock Councils duty to deliver on S17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998. 

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location 
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright):

 Quarterly update report from Thurrock District Commander , Essex Police 

9. Appendices to the report

 None 

Report Author:

Michelle Cunningham
Thurrock Community Safety Partnership Manager 
Environment 

Page 18


	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	5 Update on community safety partnership hubs

